
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 

N1NT11 SESSION 
Official Records 

CONTE NTS 
PBge 

Sta1emcnt by the r~ t>re~~ntativ~ oi l3razi l . ...... . . . . ... ... IJJ 

Agenda itcrn SS: 
Draft inte rnational co\'enants on human r ights ( ront i~:ued) lJJ 

Chairman: Mr. J Hi NOSEK (Czech oslovakia). 

In the absence of tire Clwirm<Jtl, Mr. Nt'tiiez (Costa 
Rica) , Vicc-Chairmam, took the Chair. 

Statement by the re1)rescnfative of Hraroil 

1. M r. DE BARRO S (Brazil) recalled the request 
made at a previous meeting by the Ecuadorian and 
Iraq i representatives that the Committee's deliberations 
on the draft covenants should be recorded in full, in 
view of the importance of the sub-ject and of the fact 
that many countries were represented neither on the 
E conomic and Social Council nor on the Commission 
on Human Rights. Nevertheless, the record of the 
56Sth meeting, held on the afternoon of ·wednesday, 
27 O ctober, contained a distorted account of the Bra
zilian statement. T he p rinciple of non-discrimination 
should he applied in the choice of words and emphasis 
in recording representatives' remarks. It was ob,·ious 
that various delega tions attached special importance to 
different aspects of the question, bu t all points of view 
h ad the same value and should be in terpreted as faith
fully as possible. 

AGEl''DA ITEM 53 

Draft international covenants on human rights 
(A/ 2714-. Aj 2686, chapter V, eoction I, E/2573, 
Aj C.3 j 574-) (continrted) 

GENERAL DEll ATE (continued) 

2. M rs. MONTGOMERY (Canada) said that eco
nomic, social and cultural rights were an essential 
prerequisi te for the enjoyment of traditional civil 
liberties. N evert he less, they differed substantially from 
civil and political rights in that the latter imposed 
limitations upon the State as against the individual, 
whereas the enjoyment of economic, social and cul
tural rights depended on policies involving legislation 
and administrati \·e machinery. It was therefore appro
priate, from a practical point of view, that there should 
be two instruments dealing with the two categories 
of rights. 
3. T he draft covenant on economic, social and cul
tural rights (E / 2573, annex I ) contained vague 
generalizations, w hich would haYe to be ex plained if 
the provisions of the covenant were to have the same 

THIRD COMMI'ITEE, 570th 
MEETllVG 

Tuesday, 2 November 1954, 
at 10.50 a.m. 

Net~ York 

meani ng for all countries. That applied, in particular, 
to articles 13 and l6 and to such terms as " fair wages", 
" decent living", " healthy working conditions" , "ade
quate food and housing·' ami "adequate standard of 
living". Similar con~iderat ions applied to the draft 
covenant on ci vii and political rights in the case of 
articles containing expressions susceptible of different 
interpretations according to various legal systems and 
in different languages. An attempt m ight be made to 
define such terms as "arbitrary" and "public order" 
more closely. 
4. Although the Canadian delegatio11 had expressed 
its general agreement with the content and scope of 
the draft covenant on civil and poli tical rights (E/ 
2573, annex I) , it could not agree wi th some of the 
provisions that h ad been adderl to it. In the first place, 
the 1 nte rnationa.l Court of J ustice should not be asked 
to elect member :; to th~ propos{:d human rights com
mittee; that was not a j udicial task and it should be 
left to the General A~sembly or the signatory States. 
S econdly, a r t icles 2-1 and 26 were superfluous and 
inconsistent with o ther pro visions of the draft cove
nant. Article 24 might be invoked to preven t au
thorized deroga tions, such as that providecl for in 
ar-ticle 12, and t he pre..-ention of discrimination, which 
was the pu rpose of a rt icle 24, was adequately covered 
by a rticle 2. It was impracticable to define the terms 
of article 26, es_pecially " incitement to hatred and vio
lence" and the p urpose o( the articl\: w;ts achic\'ed by 
article 19. 
5. \Vith regard to provisions which were common 
to both draft covenants, the Canadian delegation be
lieved that recognition of the principle of self-deter
mination was essenl'ial. Nevertheless, self-determ ination 
was a collective rather than au individual right and 
as such had no place in t:he covenants. Moreover, it 
was inappropria le to entrus t tbe proposed human rights 
committee with the responsibili t ies provided for in ar
ticle 48 of the draft covenant on civil :~nd political 
rights. It would also be 1 e:g<~ lly and practically unsuitable 
to grant the right of petit ion to individuals and non
governmental o rganizations. T he system of appeal to 
the human rights committee sh ould be adequate to en
sure effective implementation of the covenant. 

133 

6. With regard to the territorial articles (article 28 
of the draft covenant on economic, social and cultural 
rights and article 53 of the d raft co\·enant on civil 
and political right s) , it did not seem either p racticable 
or fai r to expect States atl rn i n ir:; t ~;" ri ng :\on-Self-Gov
erning and T rust Ter ritories to apply ali the pmvi.-;ions 
ol the co\·ena nt :s to those territories immecliatelv. Some 
o[ those territori<>s alreatly enjoyed a certa in ~1e:tsure 
or autonomy, of which they were unders tandably j ealous, 
and many of the provis ions of the draft covenants a l
ready came with in the purview of colonial governments 
and legislatures. Inclus ion of the territorial articles 

A/C.3/SR.570 



134 General Assemblr-NiQlh SeealoQ- Third Conunittee 

would make it impossible for some States to accede to 
the covenants. although it was in the general interest 
that they should d o so. 
7. The C;1na<iian delegation took strong exception 
to the federal S tate article, article 27 of the d raft 
cove11ant on economic social and cultural rights and 
article 52 of the draft covenant on ci"il and political 
rights, which couid more appropriately be called an 
"anti-federal clanse". In its resolution 421 (V), sec
tion C, the General Assembly had given instr uctions 
for the preparation of recommendations to secure the 
maximum extension of the covenants to the constituent 
units of federal States and to meet the constitutional 
problems of tho!'e States. That resolution recognized 
the fact that federal States, unlike others, were con
fronted with special problems; it d id not, however, 
stress that the CO\·enants should apply to constituent 
units, since it was the normal rule that any State 
becoming a party to a convention which contained no 
federal clause was automatically bound to apply the 
con vention to all its territory . The tex t adopted by 
the Commis~ion on Hun•an Rights not only implied 
complete lack o f understanding of the special position 
of federal States but was in uirect contradiction with 
the letter and spirit of the General Assembly resolu
tion. The Canadian Government could not consider 
hecomi n~ a party to the covenants unless the text of 
article 27 of the draft covenant on economic, social 
ami cultural rights and article 52 of t he draft cove~ 
nanl on civil and political rights was replaced by an 
article taking into consideration the special position 
of federal States. I ts objective in ins i ~ting on the in
serti0n of a suitable federal clause was not to escape 
obl is-at ions. The federal Constitution of Canada had 
hee~· adopted ar a time when it could not have been 
forescC'n that matters attri fJLlred exclu~ively to the p ro
vin~.:rs wonl<l t>nter into the sphere of international leg
islation. The current situation in Canada was that 
international agreements dealing with matters within 
~~n J ~~~-! ~~! ~t:t~0!" ~: £ t~e ~):~·:!!'!~e~ ~Ed :-:~t !;~:: :;~::; ~!~~ !:.~~·~· 
o( the land even if they were approved or ratified by 
the federal Government. 

8. The Canaciian delegation hoped that the middle 
com~c advocated by the F rench rep resentative would 
be followed and that the covenants would not be 
drafted in such a way thiit it would be impossible for 
many State.~ to accept and implement thei r provisions. 

9. Mr. CHE::-JG (China) thm1ght it was useful to 
recall the provisions of the United Nations Charter 
relating to human rights, anu to consider whether, in 
the light of the events that had taken place since 1945, 
it was necessary to proceed with the task of drafting 
the covenants. Those events, and the dangers they en
tailed, ~.:ou ld not be ignored. The enslavement of the 
pe<1ples of Eastern European countries and of the 
northern parts of K orea and I ndo-China had been 
lt·gitirni 7.ed, condoned or defended by many countries, 
including Statl!S Members of the United Nations. F orced 
labm1r, cliscrirni nation , religious intolerance, political 
persecution, denial of free speech, imprisonment and 
puni~luncnt without fair trial and denial of the right 
to choose representatives still prevailed in many States, 
includ ing s0me that were ~{ember:; of the United Na
tions. Those facts led to the conclusion that exis ting in
ternational law had not deter red States from violating 
human rights and denying fundamental freedoms. It 
should be borne in mind that the rise o f H itler and 

Mussolini had been accomplished by means of wholesale 
violations of human rights. A ll the portents of the Sec~ 
ond 'World vVar were again evident in a more ruthless 
fonn anrl on an even wider scale. The preparation of 
the covenants should therefore be pursued with renewed 
vigour. 
10. The Chinese delegation's attitude towar ds the cove
nants was guided by five principal considerations. Its 
objectives were to seek effective means t o implement 
the purposes and principles of the Charter; to guarantee 
the observance of human rights and fundamental free~ 
doms by law; to ensure that the articles of the cove
nants should have a common denominator of universal 
app lication and should not seek to impose, even in good 
faith, the political, economic, social or cultural con
cepts of any S tate or group of States; to avoid the in
sertion of articles which did not strictly fall within the 
scope of individual human rights; and to ensure rapid 
accession to the covenants by the largest possible num
ber of Member and non-Member States. 

11. Generally speaking, the covenants had been pains~ 
takingly d rafted, though careful study would be needed 
to bring the intention of the articles into line with dif
ferent legal systems and in differen t languages and to 
settle the final grouping and order of the p rovis ions. 
Although the Chinese delegation agreed with t he major~ 
ity of the Commission on Human Rights that the meas~ 
ures of implementation in part IV of the draft covenant 
on civil and poli tical r ights (E/2573, anne.x I ) should 
apply to that covenant only, it did not entirely approve 
of the terms of reference of the proposed human r ights 
committee. It would not object to a debate on the 
Uruguayan proposal fo r the establishment of an Office 
of the United Nations High Commissioner for Human 
Rights (E/2573, annex I II) . Article 2 of the draft 
covenant on economic, social and cultural rights (E/ 
2573, annex I) provided a realistic means of implementa
t ion for that covenant; nevertheless, one great defect 
of the implementation system lay in the absence of any 
provision to censure a ::>tate which used its economic, 
social and cultural resources for the preparation of ag
gressive wars, to the detriment of the population which 
should enjoy those resources. 
12. The right to property constituted the basis of the 
philosophies of many countries and the international 
community had no right to impose changes in such con
cepts. The right of the individual to own property was 
recognized in his country, but other S tates considered 
that the ex cessive ownership of property was contrary 
to the best interests of society. It should also be taken 
into account that exprop riation wa s permitted in all 
States, under certain conditions . I n view of the com
plexity of the problem, the article on that right should 
either be very simple, or extremely specific; otherwise 
what was not specified might be interpreted as an 
exemption. 
13. The representatives of certain federal States had 
said that, unless a more satisfactory federal State article 
were drafted, it would be impossible for them to accede 
to the covenants. In that connexion, it would be wise 
to take into account the fact that, while the inclusion 
of the article would not prevent unitary States from 
acceding to the covenants, the non-inclusion of a satis
factory danse would present insurmountable obstacles 
for many federal States. 
14. The question of petitions hinged on the two ques
tions whether the time was ripe to revise international 



570tb meetinJ- 2 November 1954 135 

iaw ~(, a::. to make rhe ir.di·,idtta! the subject of that law 
where he had previously been its object and whether 
human rights could be promot.ed. ant~ saiegu~rcled ef
fectively everywhere under ex1stmg mternatmnal law 
and national p ractices . The answer to the second ques
tion was clcarlv in the negative. \Vith regard to the 
first question. h~\\'ever . it might be :;aid that the individ
ual " ·as gradually emerging as a subject. of interna
tional Ia"·; ex::tmples of that emergence existed m pro
visions of two rlraft conventions drawn up by the In
ternational L aw Commission/ in the report of the 
1953 Committee on International Crimi nal Jurisdic
tion,!! in the European Con vention for the Protecti~n 
of H uman Rights and Fundamental Freedoms and m 
the practice of the Trusteeship Council. There w ere 
three types of petitions, those of .states agai~st States, 
those of non-governmental organtzatJOns agamst States 
and those of individuals against States. The first type 
of p eti tion vave r ise to no differences of opinion; with 
regard to the other two types, the Chi~ese delegat~on 
considered that a covenant drawn up w1th the spectfic 
purpo~e of p reventing the violatio~ of in~iv i·dual hun~an 
rights could have no real effect w1thout tmplen:entatJon 
clauses allowing non-governmental orgamzat10ns and 
individuals the right of petition. The ques tion should 
be debated at length. 
15. H e conld support neither of the extreme positions 
with regard to the question of reservations and had 
therefore co-sponsored a compromise draft article in the 
Commission on Human R ights (E/2573, para. 271); 
although that draft had been rejected, he would con
tinue to seek a solution. 
16. The Chinese delegation realized that recognition 
of the right of self-determination would not of itself 
solve all problems and that prema.ture :;e~f-dctermination 
might be costly. N evertheless, 1t cons1~ered t~at the 
fervent desire of many peoples to achteve sel<-deter
mination should be satisfied , with th e assistance of the 
United K ations. T he early realization of the right ·w~s 
an es;;ential prerequis ite of an orderly democratic 
societv and undue delay in the achievement of self
deter~lination m ight undermine the ·very existence of 
the O rganization. The subjugation of alien peoples had 
been one of the main causes of past wars. There had ' 
been a tendency, however, in some of the debates on · 
self-determination in the United Nations, to carry the 
concept of self-determination too far and to conf_use .the 
question oi m inorities with that of sclf-determmatwn. 
The two p roblems were distinct and require~ different 
-solutions. Furthermore, the concept of seceSSIOn should 
not be a llowed to enter into the consideration of the 
question. It had been stated cate~or.ically at the San 
Francisco Conference that the pnnc1ple of self-deter
mination confom1cd to the purposes of the United Na
tions Charter only in so far as it implied the right of 
self-government and not of secession. 
17. \Vith regard to the ar ticle on self-determination 
included as art icle 1 in both the draft covenants, he con
sidered that paragraph 3, on sovereignty over natural 
wealth and resources, had no place in a covenant on 1' 
ci,·il and political rights. Secondly, the right of self- · \ 
determination was a collective right and had no _place ~ 
in covenants dealing with indiYidual h uman nghts. 1 

Thirdly, self-determination had become a political prob-

1 See Off icial Records of the GclJ£"ral Assembly, Ninth Ses
siou, S 11pplewoa Xa. 9, chapter II. 

2 Jl>id .. Supplement No. 12. 

k·m and its soh1tinp Jnd t0 ht:' fnunrl mainly through 
political means. The Chinese dclega r i r~n therei<l re 
thought that it would be wise to draft a thml covenant, 
on self-determination, to he submitted to the General 
As;;cmbly simultaneously \\'ith the other tw~ covenants. 
Another possibility was to draft a declaratJOn on self
determ ination. to be followed hy a covenant. 
18. l\f r. ~IEX ESl<:.S PALL.o\RES (Ecuador) said 
that his countrv \\'as convinced that the covenants on 
human rights \~·ould contri bute greatly to the securing 
of \\'Orld recognition of and respect for human rights. 
The draft covenants could no doubt be improved, but 
they were nevertheiess of outstanding merit. 
19. It was encou raging to observe what a profound 
influence had b~cn exerted hy the Universal Declara
tion of Human R ights, despite its purely declaratory 
character. Its provi:.ions had been included in several 
Consti tutions and much relevant legislation had been 
adopted s ince 194R It had had an enormous impact 
on public opinion and had prepared the ground for the 
conclusion by sixty nations of universally binding cove
nants with the force of law. T he Declaration had been 
the first s tage, at which the cardinal principles and the 
fundamental rights had been laid down; it was the task 
of the Third Committee, by virtue of the obligations 
accepted under Article 56 of the Charter, to give the 
force of law to those principles and rights. 

20. In that final stage the mo~t important task was 
to provide the covenants with effective me<tns of im 
plementation. T he E ctladorian deleg~tion had no hesit."l
tion in asserting that it was essenual to create appro
priate machinery to enable parties whose rights had been 
infringed to obtain genuine redress. It ~v~s also neces
sary to introduce some form of supervtSlon of the be
ha~iour of States. 1t followed logically from the prin
ciple of internat ional obligation to implement the cove
nants that the individual should be permitted the right 
of petition or appeal to an appropriate international 
body, once the possibilities of appeal through normal 
domestic channels h ad been exhausted. The problem 
of intervention in domestic aiTairs h~d hccn th~roughty\ 
discussed elsewhere. The Ecuadonan del~gabon was 1 
fully aware of the implications of Article 2, paragraph l 
7 of the Charter. but considered that t ha t. a rticle was 
i~tended to prevent intervention of the coercive or 
dictntoria] type, n ot intervention to secu re the protec
tion of human right . If that were the caRe, the United 
Nations would lbc unable to act effectively in one o f the 
most important fi elds covered by the Charter aml it 
would be pointless to sign the covenants. The Ecuador
can delegation therefore submitted that the right of 
peti t ion, c_,ercised t·ither in it~ original fo rm or through 
the establishment of an at torney-general's office, as 
suggested by the 'Cruguayan delegation (E/2573, an· 
nex III), was essential to the implementation articles of 
the covenants. 

21. T he intern ational cour t of appeal would come into 
operation only wheu a ll domestic remedies had been 
exhau:;ted. Fundamentally the application of hnman 
rights was \Yi thin the domestic jurisdiction of States, 
without prejudi ce to the international power of inter
vention, as pro1·idcd by the 0 1arler or by rhe covena nts, 
in case.; 1rhcre States had faile( [ to carry out their 
obligations. It \\·as to Le hopt:d that such cases could 
always be dealt with through normi.il domestic chan
nels, but if not, dome.:;tic ju risdiction in it s narrO\v sense 
wou]d, under covenants freely entered into, have to yield 



136 Ge11eral Assembly-Ninth Se!l8ioa-Third Commillce 

to the international machinery of investigation, control 
and enfo rcement. That prind ple was expressed in anide 
2, paragraph 2. of the d raft covenant on civil and 
politi..:al rights (E/2573, annex I), wherebv States 
would undertake to take the neces:-,:uy steps- to give 
legislative effect to the r ights recognized in the cove
nant. Under article 2, paragraph 3, States would accept 
one of the fundamental obligations of the covenant, that 
of proYiding lor effective remedies. 
22. It followed from article 41 that States should make 
domestic remedies a vailable, and that the p rocedure 
should he effective. It was right that the covenants 
should make that requ irement mandator y, since it would 
he useless to sign covenants for the in ternational pro
tection nf huma n rights if States could cite constitu
tional difficul ties as a Teason for fai lure to respect 
human rights. lt was equally right tn provide for in
ternational inter vention when all domestic remedies had 
been exhausted. 
23. It had to be admitted with regret that the im
plementation articles of the draft covenant on civil and 
political rights seemed, from t~e strictly legal point of 
view, inadequate to guarantee the rights and provide ef
fective remedies for infringem~nts . First of all , the idea 
of special courts of law on human r ights, such as those 
un~nimously recommrnded by the working gro up ap
pomted during the second session of the Commission on 
"'.~uman Rights in 1947,3 had been completely dropped 
.rom the implementation articles. The ideal, first sug
gested by Australia, of an international court of human 
rights seemed to be dead so far as the U nited Nations 
was concerned, although sucb a court had been apProved 
in principle by certain regional organizations. T he pro
posed human rights committee, which would hear only 
cc•rnplain ts submitted to it by States after the possibilities 
of complaint from State to S tate had been exhausted 
did not appear to be the most effective arrangement: 
It seemed unlikely that a State would make a fo rmal 
complaint agaiut another on behalf of one or two in-
~; .. . ;:,1 , .~,1(' .._ ... A 4'\\.. ... .... ~ .. t- -a. ~ r:.... . .. _ • • • ~ 
- - · • --• .. •• -'1 ..... _ ..,. ""~ ....,• ._.. tp,t •-iloo Q ...,; .. "' '-'-' Yl\1 V U &\,1 '-Vtllj.lld.ll l 

again $t itself. T he logical solution was to institute the 
right of yetition-subj cct to absolute safeguards to pre
vent fnvolous or false complaints-by individuals 
groups of individuals o r non-governmental organiza~ 
tio;ts. The practical · difficulties had heen repeatedly 
pomted out by the opponents of the right of petition 
but it was surely possible to agree (}n a procedur~ 
which woulrJ eliminate the more serious d ifficulties while 
retaining the essence of the principle. An opportunity to 
do that ~ad been offered by the U ruguayan proposal 
to e:.tabhsh an office of an attorney-gen eral for human 
rights. 
24. Uncle: t~at wise suggestion, the attorney-general, 
a fter ~st~bl~,hm_g the genuineness of a complaint, would 
sulu111t 1t 111 h1s own person to the S tate concerned 
and negotiate an appropriate remedy with that State. 
If he iclt that such negotiations would fail, he would 
refer the case to the human rights committee. H is 
status would not be judicial; his function would be 
merc:ly to initiate consideration of the cases and verify 
that thq were well founded. T he proposal warranted 
most careful consideration. 
25. Tt \~as the _Commi~tee's duty to .explore fu lly all 
comprom1se solutions wh1ch would facihtate the adoption 
of the covenants and it was reasonable to try to find 

3 Sec Ojjidal Records of lhc Eco110mic on.d S ncial Council 
Si:rth Sessiun, Suppl.:mcn.t No. 1, annex C, para. SO. ' 

the lowest common denominator, without, however, 
abandoning so much of principle as to render the cove
nants useless. ff all States found themselves immediately 
able to sign the cm·enants, or if the covenants contained 
nothing that was not already laid down in a11 the Con
stitutions and legislations or :\.tember States, they would 
be useless and sterile. T he Committee's work would 
be a waste of time unless the sixty nations could agree 
to legislate boldly and dynamically for the present, 
while at the same time sowing the seed of future 
progress. 

26. Mr. SILES ZUAZO (Doli\·ia) said that the Com
mittee's decision to give the d raft covenants a first read
ing at the current session had heen necessarv but. unless 
a spirit or compromise and collaboration pr~~ai lcd, there 
was some danger that the final approval of the covenants 
would be unduly delayed. 

27. One of the most controversial poin ts had been 
the right of self-determination. That right had been 
stated in the Atlantic Cha rter, in the United Nations, in 
the Moscow and Cairo Declarations and in Articles 1, 
55, 73 and 76 of the United Nations Charte r. T hose 
documents had been signed before the end of the Sec
ond World War, and therefore it might be insinuated 
that they had been only an abstract token of gratitude 
ior the sacrifices of hlood a nd wealth made by many 
non-self-governing countries and for the generous 
collaboration of the countries, which though under
developed, yet p roduced essential stra tegic raw ma
terials, unless the right of self-determination was fi rmly 
and fully maintained. 

28. -~here,had bee!'!. many a rgul?ents against the "un
condrllonal recogmllon of the nght of self-determina
tjon, no~bly by interpreting Article 73 restrictively. But 
that artrcle actually implied that if terr itories which did 
not yet enjoy a full measure o{ self-government had an 
~nterest in declaring their complete independence, that 
:nterest was paramount. over the economic or political 
1'nt;:.r,:.c:t nf th"' rn,.t.,." ........ 1.•"' - ... _ .. _ ... __ ! .. .. . . · ' · · • · 

- - -·· - ..... _ • . - J''" "· "'~·• ... ~ \.4"""'" J ..tll U.J..a.J.~J.I.tLt Uill~ l L·::> 

administration. The article further implied that the re
sponsibility for administering such territories was a 
sacred trust, not a right, a nd that the administering 
Power should therefore promote to the utmost the in
habitants' well-being. The well-being of a people could 
be thus promoted ()n]y if th:1t people was able to make 
full tt~e ~f its lab_our. force, without its profits becoming 
contnbutlons whrch 1t had to share with others. Article 
73 b laid down the duty to lake due account of the 
political aspirations o f the peoples. But, even if the idea 
of ~elf-government had become f':ll:>' de_veloped, it might 
log1cally b.e ~ssumed that the adrmmstermg Power would 
not be wilhng to acknowledge that, unless it was de
manded by force, as so often occurred. It was in order 
to. prevent sue~ bloody disput~ that an attempt was 
bemg made to mcorporate the nght o f self-dete rmimi
tion in the covenants. 
29. Another objection frequently raised was that the 
notio~1. of "pe~le" h~~ not been precisely defined. The 
defini tion of people had hcen well set forth in ac
cordance with the p recepts of jntemational juris
prudence by those who had supported the inclusion of 
the right of self-determination in the covenants. If 
however, the question was still to be debated it might 
be best. to ad~ a ph~~se explaining the reat' scope of 
the notron ?f _people for the purposes of the right or 
self-dctenmnat10n. lie would submit a draft resolution 
on that subject in due course. 



570th muting-2 November 1954 137 
-------------····-·-~-· 

30. Bolivia \vas bearing the dramatic experience of 
its own struggle for political and economic independence 
in mind in supporting the inclusion of the three para
graphs of article 1 in the covenants. 
31. When it had won political independence, Bolivia 
had found that the Crown o: Spain had left as its heritage 
a svstem of inhuman exploitation which had lasted for 
mof.e than a century. The Indians had not been able 
to free themselves from slavery and had continued to 
provide free manpower for the creation of new wealth. 
That showed that a declaration of political sovereignty 
was not sufficient in under-deveJoped countries, since 
control of the economic factor which determined the 
shape of the political State was also necessary if it was 
to have any reality. 
32. The leaders of the Bolivian Revolution had 
analysed the true state of the nation and had taken 
three basic points for their programme: control of 
the national economy, integration of the peasan~s into 
the life of the nation, and diversification of production. 
33. The Bolivian economy had in the past been in 
the hands of three great mining enterprises1 which had 
exported the entire production, to the country's detri
ment. 
34. After the National Revolution had gained the 
mastery of the economy and nationalized the tin mines, 
the Bolivian delegation to the United Nations had. in 
conjunction with the -Uruguayan delegation, submitted 
a draft resolution on the right to exploit freely natural 
wealth and resources, which had been adopted as General 
Assembly resolution 626 (VII). As a result of the land 
reform decreed on 2 August 1953, the Bolivian dele
gation to the Third Inter-American Indigenous Con
gress held in Bolivia in August 1954 had submitted an 
eight-point draft resolution embodying the Declaration 
of the Essential Rights of the Indian Peoples, which 
had been adopted unanimously save for a reservation 
made to point 2 by El Salvador and Peru. Bolivia 
was glad to be able to tell the Committee that all the 
human rights contemplated in the two coyenants had 
already been embodied in its legislation and that other 
substantial rights not incorporated in them had been 
granted. 
35. His delegation could not agree with the objections 
raised to article 18 of the draft covena!lt on dvil and 
political rights {E/2573, annex I). The Apostolic 
Roman Catholic religion was offidally recognized in 
Bolivia, but all religions could be freely practised. 
Freedom to maintain or change one's religion was un
doubtedly a fundamental human right. Some representa
tives objected to the provision for change of religion, 
but to omit that right would conflict with every man's 
freedom to seek refuge in the religion \vhich he found 
most Jn accord \vith his spiritual needs and to change 
it if he lost faith in it. Almost all Latin American 
countries officially recognized the Roman Catholic re
ligion and none refused entry to missionaries of other 
religions who came to proselytize, because only the 
human conscience could accept any particular re!igion 
as the true one. Obviously, if a religion held that its 
doctrine could make a better world, its missionaries 
would tiJr to convert those who did not profess that 
rdigi(Jn. If that 'vere not so, some religions cou]d be 
regarded as confining themselves to the faithful and as 
unwiU:ng to carry their spiritual light to other peoples. 
36. With regard to reservations, his delegation be
lieved that it was of the utmost importance that no 

reservatiQns of any kind should he arlmi~ted. At the 
most, a time limit might be set for those countries whose 
law was inconsistent with the covenants to change 
it. If reservations were admitted, the covenants would 
lose their universality. A change in legislation to bring 
it into line with the covenants \vould show that Mem
ber States were tru1y engaged in making a better world. 
as was so often stated in the Assembly. 
37. Mr. LUCIO (Mexico) said that the Third Com
mittee's worl< at the tenth session should be the detailed 
discussion and adoption of the draft articles; according
ly, the Committee should set out very clearly in its 
final draft resolutions at the current session precisely 
what it intended to do at the next session. 
38. Mexico's recognition of and support for interna
tional respect for human rights was well known; a 
recent indication had been its successful proposal for 
the inclusion in the agenda of the Tenth International 
Conference of American States at Caracas in March 
1954 of an item concerning measures to promote human 
rights without infringing national sovereignty and the 
principle of non-intervention, which had been the basis 
of the final resolution on human rights. 
39. The :VIexican delegation still thought that it would 
be preferable to draft one covenant rather than two 
because of the close interrelation of all the rights; that 
would preserve the unity which had given the Univer
sal Declaration of Human Rights such coherence and 
authority. It wonld, howe7er, bow to the General As
sembly's decision. 
40. The right of peoples to self-determination, set 
forth explicitly in the Charter of the United Nations 
and implicitly in article 21, paragraph 3, of the Univer
sal Declaration of Human Rights should certainly be 
included in the draft covenants ; its recognition would 
contribute to the maintenance of international peace 
and security. 
41. Mexico had a special system of protection for hu
man rights known as the juicio de amparo, which had 
been one of the bases for article 8 of the Universal 
Dedaration. As the Mexican representative had stated 
at the sixth session of the General Assembly, Mexico 
would find no substantive difficulty in applying the 
covenants. He recognized, however, that federal States 
would be confronted with difficulties in applying the 
covenants and that the covenants should be ratified 
by the largest possible number oi States. The Com
mittee should therefore consider very carefully and in 
a spirit of compromise any proposals put forward by 
the States directly affected. That position should not 
be construed as an attempt to justify a differentiation 
as between the obligations of signatory States; but the 
problem existed and had to be faced realistic&lly. It 
should be borne in mind that international law had 
evolved as a result of the development of civilization. 
Ortginally, relations between a State and its nationals 
had been strictly a domestk matter and no one, there
fore, had anticipated any difficuities in international law 
originating from the question whether a State was or 
was not federal in structure. As domestic sovereignty 
was being appreciably modified hy treaties or cove
nants, due consideration should be given to a situatlonj 
the strictly juridical nature of which \va.s one of those 
difficulties which were bound to confront countries in 
the application of the covenants on human rights. 
42. The lack of synchronization between domestic 
and international law was somewhat similar with regard 



138 Ceoerol Anernbl:r- Ninth Ses1ion-Thlrd Committee 

to the territorial application clause. Mexico had al
ways fo ught for the speediest possible emancipation of 
colonial peoples, and, as their independence had in
evitahlv to be based on a fi rm nrotection of hu man 
rights: it could never accept any ·ide.a that the metro
politan Powers should be able to take shelter behind 
the covenants in evading the application of principles 
which the U nited Nations regarded as essen tial for the 
progress of mankind. H is delegation therefore supported 
the basic idea in article 28 of the covenant on eco
nomic, social and cultural rights and article 53 of the 
covenant on civil and political rights, but suggested 
that the Committee should consider carefully any pro
posals made by the administering Powers to overcome 
their very real difficulties. 
43. The question of including an article on the right 
of property had been raised. The r ight to ind ividual 
and collective property might well be recognized, but 

Printed in U.S.A. 

made subject to the higher interests of the public weal 
~nd social progress in the country concerned, o n the 
hnes proposed by the S ub-Committee of the Commis
sion on Human Rights, <IS .o.et forth in pat'lgraph 52 of 
the Commission's report ( E/2573 ) . 

44. The common denominato r for all proposals for 
the recognition of and respect fo r human rights was 
the sense of the dignity of the human person, but 
there were national, economic, social and historical fac
tors which had led to differences from country to coun
t ry a11d therefore to differences of opinion with regard 
to specific action on the drafting of the covenants. He 
hoped that compromises would be found an<l that the 
international situat ion would develop in such a way that 
all Member States would be able to sign and ratify the 
covenants. 

T he meeting rose at 12.55 p.m. 

S-42051- Dccembcr 1954-1,850 




